

# **Code of Ethics**



#### **Table of Contents**

TABI	LE OF CONTENTS	2
INTR	RODUCTION	3
1.	INTRODUCTION: ADOPTION, UPDATE AND ADDRESSEES	3
2.	Adoption and update	3
З.	Addressees	3
PART I: VALUES		
1.	Founding Values	5
PART II: PRINCIPLES OF CONDUCT IN THE RELATIONS WITH COUNTERPARTIES		
1.	CLIENTS	8
2.	RELATIONS WITH PERSONNEL	9
З.	RELATIONS WITH SUPPLIERS	2
4.	RELATIONS WITH INVESTORS	3
5.	Relations with the Community1	4
PART III: DISSEMINATION, IMPLEMENTATION AND CONTROL MODALITIES17		
2.	DISSEMINATION AND IMPLEMENTATION1	7
З.	REPORTING OF POSSIBLE VIOLATIONS	7
4.	SANCTIONING SYSTEM	9



# Introduction

# 1. Introduction: adoption, update and addressees

BFF banking Group (hereafter also the "Group"), sensitive to the need of guaranteeing legality, fairness and transparency conditions in carrying out its business and corporate activities, in order to protect its position and image, its investors' expectations and its employees' work, deemed for it to be in line with its corporate policies to proceed with the release of this Code of Ethics (hereafter also the "Code").

Accordingly, this Code forms part of a more general project aimed at attributing an ethical identity to the Group, setting out the values that shall be complied with in all conducts put in place by its appointees.

By virtue of this purpose, the Group intends to strongly reaffirm that work and business legality and correctness constitute, and always will, an inescapable value.

# 2. Adoption and update

This Code applies to BFF Bank S.p.A. (hereafter also "BFF") and the companies belonging to the Group.

It enters into force with respect to BFF with the approval by the Board of Directors and in respect of subsidiaries after adoption by means of resolution of the respective Corporate Bodies.

Upon occurrence of significant changes in the Group structure, governance or business, the Code shall be subject to review, assessing the opportunity to apply amendments, for the purpose of guaranteeing the constant alignment to the evolutions in the corporate reality and the ethical principles, as expressed by the reference economic and social communities.

## 3. Addressees

This Code aims at binding the conducts of all those who, in BFF and in any other Group company, in all countries were the Group conducts its operations, hold representation, administration or direction functions, or exercise the management and control of the legal entity they belong to, of investors (shareholders and bondholders), of all employees without exception whatsoever as well as suppliers, consultants and anyone else establishing, in any capacity, a relationship of collaboration with the Group of the associates (hereafter the "Addressees of the Code" or simply the "Addressees").



The Addressees of the Code shall be enabled to become aware of the contents hereof and employees are called to actively contribute to its scrupulous abidance, to the extent of their competence.

The Group guarantees:

- the adoption of all necessary measures to foster and disseminate the contents hereof within its structure and towards associates;
- the constant update of the Code (to adapt to organisational, legislative and other changes, if any) and the timely communication of changes within the structure;
- compliance herewith, by means of supervision and prevention actions and, in case of violations, by means of adequate sanctioning measures.

For further information regarding the dissemination, implementation and control modalities reference is made to Part III hereof.



# Part I: Values

# 1. Founding Values

BFF respects and protects fundamental human rights drawing inspiration from internationally shared standards, guidelines and principles and as expressed by authoritative sources, such as:

- the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights;
- the International Convention on Civil and Political Rights;
- the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights;
- the European Convention on Human Rights, 1950;
- the UN Convention on the Rights of the Child, 1989;
- the International Labour Organisation (ILO) Conventions concerning fundamental human rights (Convention 29, 87, 98, 100, 105, 111, 138 and 182);
- the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, 1998;
- the European Parliament Resolution of 10 March 2021, with recommendations to the Commission concerning due diligence and corporate responsibility;
- the United Nations (UN) Global Compact Principles, 1999;
- the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD) Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises, 2011;
- G20/OECD Principles of Corporate Governance;
- the ILO Tripartite Declaration of Principles on Multinational Enterprises and Social Policy;
- the World Bank Guidelines on Environment, Health and Safety (EHS);
- the United Nations Environment Programme Finance Initiative (UNEP FI) Declaration of Financial Institutions on Environment and Sustainable Development.

The Group, inspired by the main guidelines existing at national and international level also on the subject of corporate social responsibility, embraces the following values:



- a. **centrality of the individual**, which translates into:
  - protecting human dignity and promoting the protection of human rights;
  - safeguarding employee's physical integrity;
  - respecting the values of interrelation with others;
  - safeguarding and fostering differences with a view to equity and inclusion;
  - fostering dialogue and dialectics within the organisation;
  - respecting the principles of confidentiality and protection of confidential data.
- b. **diligence, professionalism and promotion of human resources** through professional enhancement itineraries;
- c. **moral integrity, legality and honesty**: moral integrity, full compliance with laws and regulations in force and fairness are a constant duty of all Addressees of this Ethical Code;
- d. **confidentiality**, which translates into the prohibition to use or disclose to third parties, without justification, confidential and/or price sensitive information;
- e. **transparency**, in managing relations and information;
- f. **accessibility**, which translates into a commitment to establishing an open and available dialogue with the different categories of stakeholders;
- g. **objectivity, equality and impartiality**: to operate with impartiality in the best interest of the Group, making decisions according to objective assessment criteria;
- h. **focus on needs and legitimate expectations** of internal and external counterparties and **interrelation** with the community and its representative members;
- i. constant commitment in favour of **research and development**, for the pursue of the maximum degree of innovation in the operations of the Group;
- j. loyalty towards the company and sense of belonging;
- k. careful use of the company assets and resources;
- I. respect and protection of the environment.

In particular, the Group:

- m. believes in the value of **free competition** as key instrument for the safeguard of the market. To this end, it undertakes to operate with upmost fairness, in compliance with the applicable rules on the protection of competition and in full respect of its competitors towards which intimidating and violent acts or agreements aimed at altering competitive dynamics are not tolerated;
- n. undertakes to comply with all provisions and rules in the matter of **anti-money laundering**.

Furthermore, the Group repudiates any form of social intolerance and / or ethnocentrism based, in particular, on sex, race, color, language, religion, political or other opinions, national origin or social, belonging to a national minority, wealth, birth or any other condition.

In the context of the founding values identified above, the Addressees will endeavour to correctly handle situations that may give rise to **conflicts of interest**, which may invalidate the ability to make impartial decisions or that may be in contrast with the interests and politics adopted by the Group in the matter of handling conflicts of interest. Directors and employees shall disclose, with the forms provided for by the applicable laws and regulations, any interest they may have, for its own or third parties' account, in specific Group transactions.



# Part II: Principles of conduct in the relations with counterparties

## 1. Clients

The Group intends to develop long lasting economic relations, based on mutual trust and satisfaction. To this end, the commercial activity is characterised by a rigid professional ethic oriented towards substantial relations fairness and on- going improvement of services through an adequate identification of needs and a highly professional, reliable and accurate service.

Each employee shall provide high quality services and deal with Clients with professionalism, expertise, honesty, transparency and courtesy.

Towards Clients, behaviours in line with the provisions of laws, contracts and regulations shall be adopted. In particular, operators must provide information about economic terms and conditions of products and services offered, in order for the Client to be able to make informed choices.

All information collected, either directly or indirectly, on Clients are carefully used and stored for the purpose of guaranteeing the upmost confidentiality and compliance with the privacy legislation in force.

The Client deserves upmost respect and full availability. Information requests coming from Clients are, therefore, timely addressed and constantly monitored for the purpose of improving the quality of the service provided and, by so doing, the Client satisfaction. Particular care is dedicated to Clients' suggestions, since the Group considers those latter as a privileged instrument to create a constructive and cooperative relation with Clients.

Complaints, if any, shall be handled with upmost promptness and care. Should complaints prove grounded, it will be the competent Organisational Units' care to promptly identify adequate solutions to resolve the dispute.

The Group opposes any corruptive practice and, accordingly, imposes on each and all persons acting in its name and on its behalf the obligation to insure that all commercial transactions with third parties, either public or private, are managed with integrity and transparency, in compliance with the applicable provisions of laws and regulations.



It is furthermore forbidden for Addressees to offer, promise, give, pay, authorise someone to give or pay, either directly or indirectly, an economic advantage or other benefit to a third party (either private or public) with the purpose of:

- o. inducing such third party to perform any function or action and rewarding him/her, by any form, for having performed it;
- p. wrongfully securing or maintaining a business or unjust advantage in connection with the corporate activities, in breach of the applicable laws and regulations.

The Group prohibits financing<sup>1</sup> in any form of companies, whether based in Italy or abroad, which, directly or through subsidiaries or affiliates, engage in the construction, production, development, assembly, repair, preservation, use, utilization, storage, holding, promotion, sale, distribution, import, export, transfer or transportation of antipersonnel mines, cluster munitions and submunitions, of whatever nature or composition, or parts thereof.

Finally, in terms of availability and in compliance with the principle of accessibility, the Group establishes an open dialogue with clients in order to provide professional services consistent with their needs, and appropriate and comprehensible answers and solutions in order to ensure the transparency of conditions applied.

## 2. Relations with personnel

The Group operates respecting the dignity of its associates and adopts all necessary actions for the safeguard of safety and physical integrity of employees, in compliance with the laws and regulations in force.

Behaviours in the workplace shall be inspired by mutual fairness: in particular, psychological and/or sexual harassments, as well as any type of improper conduct of a sexual and/or psychological nature are strictly forbidden. Furthermore, the adoption of behaviours that may represent an abuse of one's authority position is expressly forbidden.

The Group reckons the creation of a positive work environment oriented to the maximum mutual cooperation and teamwork, to sharing goals, where everyone is free to express its potential, free from any pressure or form of intimidation to be a priority. This implies that the following is deemed of key importance:

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> "Financing" means: any form of financial support carried out, including through subsidiaries, located in Italy or abroad, including but not limited to the granting of credit in any form, the issuance of financial guarantees, the assumption of equity investments, and the purchase or subscription of financial instruments issued by the companies.



- q. considering corporate goals as one's own;
- r. creating a communication system among the parties involved based on principles of truthfulness and fairness.

The Group undertakes to develop each employee's attitudes and capacities and constantly provides professional training.

The assessment of prospective employees is carried out on the basis of the correspondence of the candidates' profiles, and their specific expertise, to the expectations and corporate needs as resulting from the request put forward by the requiring function and, always, in compliance with equal opportunities for all interested parties.

All parties anyhow involved in the personnel recruitment process, within the limits of the available information, adopt measures to avoid favouritisms or influence peddling in the selection and hiring phases.

The Group provides its employees with a work environment free from racism and any form of discrimination (gender, age, nationality, religion, disability, parental status, sexual orientation), in line with the provisions of the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work (ILO, International Labor Organization).

The Group guarantees its employees the right to associate and freely join trade union associations, in line with the provisions of the Declaration on Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work (ILO, International Labor Organization). The Group also guarantees the right to collective bargaining in line with the relevant local legislation.

The Group believes in a corporate culture characterised by continuous and transparent dialogue with its personnel and inspired by the principles of protection of rights and health; therefore, it is committed to maintaining a relationship with personnel characterised by direct confrontation and the active involvement of the same personnel.

This approach aims at sharing and achieving common goals, such as the continuous improvement of performance and of the working environment.

Set out hereafter are the provisions governing some specific aspects relating to personnel:

#### Gifts and gratuities

It is forbidden to solicit and/or accept, for oneself or others, favourable treatment requests by persons with whom relations are entered into.



In case non-modest value benefits are received, prompt disclosure thereof shall be made pursuant to internal provisions.

It is furthermore forbidden to promise, grant or receive favours, benefits of whatever nature and gratuities of such a value to represent a potential conflict with one's duties towards the Group and/or its counterparties. It is in any case expressly forbidden to accept or make cash gratuities.

#### **Confidentiality obligations**

Addressees shall not use confidential information for purposes not directly connected to the exercise of the professional activity performed by them within the Group.

Such information shall be handled with modalities guaranteeing compliance with the applicable laws in the matter of privacy: in particular, it cannot be disclosed to third parties within or outside the Group, unless such disclosure is necessary to fulfil one's duties or is required by the Authorities in the context of official investigations.

#### Equipment and access to procedures and systems

All Addressees shall use all equipment, working tools and corporate assets with upmost care and in compliance with the cost-effectiveness principle. Improper uses, damages and wastes are to be avoided.

#### Safety and Heath

The Group undertakes to divulge and consolidate a culture of safety developing risk awareness, fostering responsible behaviours and preserving, especially with preventive actions, health and safety of all employees and its associates involved in its business.

The Group guarantees, in compliance with the applicable legislation, a working environment adequate under a people' safety and health standpoint. Addressees carefully comply with prevention and safety measures adopted. The Group guarantees the physical and moral integrity of its associates, working conditions in compliance with individual dignity and safe and healthy working environments, in full compliance with the applicable laws and regulations in the matter of prevention of accidents at work and workers protection.



# 3. Relations with suppliers

Relations with suppliers (including consultants) are handled by each Organisational Unit, on a competence basis, within the assigned expenditure limits, in compliance with legality, fairness and impartiality principles, as well as in compliance with internal procedures and delegated powers.

The selection of suppliers is exclusively carried out on the basis of the assessment of professional expertise, economic and market aspects, preferring counterparties able to guarantee the best quality/price ratio; in particular, conflict of interest situations shall be carefully evaluated and a selection based upon transparency and objectivity criteria shall be guaranteed.

The Group guarantees to all suppliers:

- s. clear and transparent selection procedures, capable of guaranteeing parity of information and equal possibility to access the offer;
- t. correct and fair competition conditions in carrying out the negotiations, also through the prevention and fight of any form of conflict of interests and the pursue of interests other than that of the Group;
- u. the adoption of all measures necessary to guarantee legality and fairness of payments, with specific reference to those in favour of parties other than those dismissing assets or providing services or of foreign entities or to be effected on cash accounts opened with foreign credit institutions;
- v. a constant and constructive debate to identify relation improvement areas, with specific reference to transparency and compliance with contractual terms, and to foster a greater social and environmental responsibility along the supply chain.

In the selection of suppliers process, their popularity on the market and ability to comply with current legislative obligations are also taken into account.

All suppliers shall comply with the applicable provisions of laws, regulations, professional ethics and self-conduct.

In handling relations with suppliers, the Group is inspired by fairness and integrity principles. In case a supplier puts in place behaviours in contrast with the above, the Group is entitled to adopt measures that can also escalate to the termination of the contract and the exclusion, either temporarily or permanently, of further business relations, in addition to demanding compensation for any damages incurred.

With a view to greater accessibility, the Group is also committed to establishing transparent relations with its suppliers aimed at a confrontation that favours a



continuous improvement in the quality of the service offered to clients and also inspired by fairness and mutual trust in a long-term perspective.

### 4. Relations with investors

Aware of the strategic importance of the relationship with investors, the Group is committed to promoting a fruitful dialogue, also with regard to ESG policies and issues, in compliance with the principle of equal information and the price-sensitive information regime, encouraging and facilitating the widest participation in particular of shareholders in the informed exercise of their voting rights.

With this view, an approach is pursued that favours a sharing of each party's points of view through a constant and ongoing relationship based on fair, transparent and differentiated forms of engagement, with the aim of greater value in the medium to long term.

#### Transparency and Clarity

Dialogue with investors is handled through a timely communication that shall always be clear, complete, accurate, correct and truthful.

#### Timeliness

In full compliance with the principles on material and privileged information and the regulations for listed companies, the Group is committed to providing answers to questions in a timely manner, adapting the modalities and timing to the specific case.

#### Equal treatment

The Group is committed to acting ensuring the fair treatment of all investors; in particular, ensuring equal information and removing all forms of discrimination and preferential behaviour and, finally, ensuring identical conditions among investors in the same situation.

#### Accessibility

In conjunction with the principle of equal treatment, the Group is committed to establishing transparent and clear communication regarding market demands, also through events and announcements, in order to provide greater assurance to the investments made in the Group and, consequently, a high degree of credibility in the market.



## 5. Relations with the Community

#### **Relations with Public Authorities**

Addressees of this Code shall maintain a conduct compliant with legality and, on occasions of verifications and inspections by the competent Public Authorities, an attitude of upmost availability and cooperation towards inspective and supervisory bodies.

A transparent and responsible behaviour is also required in drawing up periodic reporting and every other notice to be served to the same authorities pursuant to the provisions of laws and regulations.

It is, therefore, forbidden to hide information from these persons or provide false or untrue documents, manipulated documents or documents however capable of impeding or obstructing in whatever way the operations of the Public Authorities that come into contact with the Group by virtue of their institutional functions.

It is, furthermore, expressly forbidden to promise or grant to the aforementioned persons benefits of whatever nature and origin – even personal – aiming at favouring the Group interests and/or private interests of the Addressees of the Code, even going along with the inducing behaviour of a public officer or public service deputy.

In addition, in compliance with the principle of transparency and the rules in protection of competition, the Group is committed to avoiding the arising of conflicts of interest with employees of any public Authority aimed at altering free market competition.

The Group is organised to promptly provide all Supervisory Authorities with any information possibly requested, and to cooperate with them in any investigation or pre-investigation proceedings.

#### Relations with the Public Administration

The Group and all Addressees, operating on behalf thereof in the relations with the Italian or foreign Public Administration, inspire and adapt their conducts to compliance with legality, impartiality and good management, the Public Administration is bound to.

Contacts with the Italian or foreign Public Administration (public officers, entities, organisations and/or institutions), are limited to those persons specifically and formally mandated by the Group.

Relations with the Public Administration are inspired by fairness and transparency principles, respecting reciprocal roles and excluding all behaviours and/or attitudes



aiming at improperly and/or wrongfully influencing actions or that may even only appear to do so.

The Group disapproves every behaviour, by whoever put in place on its behalf, consisting in promising or offering, either directly or indirectly, cash or other favours to Italian or foreign Public Officers and/or Public Service Deputies, even going along with the inducing behaviour of a public officer or public service deputy.

It is forbidden to allocate to purposes other than those for which they have been granted, any contribution, subsidy or funding obtained from the State or other public entity or by the European Community also of modest value and/or amount. The Group disapproves every behaviour aiming at achieving, from the State, the European Community or other public entity, every type of contribution, funding, facilitated loan or other disbursement of the same type, by means of declarations and/or altered or forged documents or by way of omitted information or, in more general terms, by way of artifices or deceits, including those realised by way of an information or computer system, aiming at inducing in error the disbursing entity.

The Group may not be represented in the relations with the Italian or foreign Public Administration by third parties when a conflict of interest, even just in theory, can be foreseen.

#### **Declarations to the Judicial Authority**

Conduct rules provided for in respect of relations with the Public Administration are valid also in case the Group is involved under whatever title in a criminal, civil or administrative proceeding.

In case of dealing with judicial proceedings, behaviours, under whatever form, put in place directly or by means of a natural or legal person, apt to favour or damage one party in a civil, criminal or administrative proceeding are strictly forbidden.

#### Political and trade union organisations

Relations with representatives of political and trade union organisations are reserved to the Organisational Units mandated thereto.

In any case, it is expressly forbidden to all employees to make contributions in any form to organizations of a political nature and / or purpose (e.g. political parties, movements, associations, etc.) or to their representatives and candidates in the name and / or on behalf of BFF.



In the dealings with the aforementioned entities, Addressees shall behave in compliance with the applicable laws and with transparency, integrity and impartiality, for the purpose of insuring a correct dialogue with them, without any disparity of treatment.

It is furthermore expressly forbidden to promise or supply to (or receive from) such persons benefits of whatever nature and origin – also personal – aiming at favouring the Group interests (or obtaining wrongful advantages) and/or interests of a private nature.

#### Relations with the mass media

Relations with the mass media are reserved to the Organisational Units mandated thereto, in compliance with internal procedures.

It is forbidden for all company's associates to:

- w. provide to representatives of the mass media any news directly or indirectly concerning the Group;
- x. disseminate false information capable of having a significant impact on the public's reliance on the capital soundness of banks and banking groups.

Information shall be transparent, truthful, correct, updated, pertinent and not exceeding the purposes of the communication and its scope and, in any case, in compliance with the rights provided for in the matter of privacy and confidentiality of data. It shall be consistent with the corporate policies and strategies and shall not be expressed in a way that may be misleading or ambiguous.

BFF and any other Group Company, each for their own competence, further insure the truthfulness and completeness of the information present on the website.



# Part III: Dissemination, implementation and control modalities

# 2. Dissemination and implementation

This Code of Ethics is drafted and published in Italian and translated into English and Spanish; it is available to Addressees in paper and electronic form, through various channels including the website, the Group intranet webs, as well as internal training and communication activities. The Code is undersigned for acceptance by Addressees upon recruitment or beginning of activity and is included in the training programmes for all employees and associates depending on the various roles and responsibility levels. All operational and management structures of the Group guarantee full compliance of their actions and activities with the principles and values of this Code of Ethics and undertake to disseminate and foster the knowledge, comprehension and compliance with the Code.

# 3. Reporting of possible violations

In the event of breaches of the provisions contained in the Consolidated Banking Act (TUB), as well as those governed by this Code (therein the provisions in the "Relations with personnel" section), the Group has made available the following channels to address any reports (also anonymously):

- *i)* to the Supervisory Body
  - to the e-mail address <a href="https://okarage.com">odv231@bff.com</a> or
  - via ordinary mail to BFF Bank S.p.A. Attention of the Supervisory Body, Via Domenichino, 5, 20149, Milan (MI);
- *ii)* to the Parent Company's Internal Audit Function
  - through a channel managed by an external provider, accessible 24/7, at the following link: <u>https://digitalplatform.unionefiduciaria.it/whistleblowing/default\_new4.as</u> <u>p?TOKEN=BFFBANK;</u>
  - to the e-mail address segnalazioni@bff.com or
  - via ordinary mail to BFF Bank S.p.A. Attention of Responsabile Segnalazioni, Via Domenichino, 5, 20149, Milan (MI).



In compliance with the provisions of the law in force for the protection of whistleblowers of crimes or irregularities that have come to light in the context of a public or private business relationship, the Group adopts the necessary measures to guarantee the confidentiality of the identity of the reporter.

The Group ensures that any reporting person will not be subject to any form of retaliation, discrimination whether direct or indirect, or penalization, for reasons connected directly or indirectly with the report, ensuring complete confidentiality of the reporter's identity, without prejudice to the obligations of law safe for the obligations of law and the protection of the rights of the society or of the people falsely accused and / or in bad faith.

#### Handling of reports

The Group handles all reports received with the utmost attention, according to principles of impartiality and fairness and in line with the provisions of the internal whistleblowing procedure.

Responsibility for the internal reporting systems is entrusted to the Internal Audit Function of the Parent Company, which manages the reception, examination and evaluation phases of the reporting procedure, assisted by its structure.

Each report is subjected to an assessment of relevance and validity, which if necessary and possible, involves the whistleblower, adopting the due precautions in accordance with current legislation.

If the report proves relevant and well-founded, an investigation is initiated, the results of which are subsequently shared with the Board of Statutory Auditors and the Top Management; the latter will then evaluate the implementation of the necessary measures. Should the report alternatively be deemed irrelevant and / or unfounded, it will be archived.

If the proof collected during the investigation proves insufficient to express an impartial judgement on the subject of the investigation, the person in charge of the internal reporting system shall inform within the report and proceeds to communicate this impossibility to the reporter.

All reports, relevant and otherwise, are collected in a specific register, and the head of the internal reporting systems prepares an annual report on the activities carried out to be submitted to the approval of the Board of Directors, which is subsequently made available to the staff. of the bank.



# 4. Sanctioning System

Compliance with the provisions of this Code is considered to form essential part of the obligations of the Addressees. The Group adopts an equal degree of rigour in dealing with violations of the Code, undertaking to provide for and inflict, in a coherent, impartial and uniform fashion, sanctions proportional to the seriousness of the violation.

The disciplinary system also provides for sanctions against those who violate measures to protect the signalling person, as well as those who carry out with gross negligence or intentional misconduct reports that prove to be unfounded.

With specific reference to employees, compliance with this Code of Ethics forms essential part of the contractual obligations pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations. Any violation of this Code constitutes, therefore, a violation of the obligations of the employment relation and/or disciplinary offence, with any consequence of law also in respect of the preservation of the employment relation and may entail the right to claim damages for any resulting loss.